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UNITED STATES OF AM ERICA

V9.

W ILLIAM D. RODRIGUEZ,

Defendant.

/

IN FO R M A TIO N

The United States Attorney charges that:

' GENERAL ALLEGATIONS

At all times relevant to this Information:

Federal Law Governinz the Distribution of Preseription Druzs

1. The Prescription Drug Marketing Act of 1987 ($$PDMA'') required t at any

person or entity that engaged in the wholesale distribution in interstate comm erce of pre cription

drugs be licensed by the State from which the person or entity distributed the drugs. U der the

PDM A, the term çswholesale distributiong' is desned as the distribution of drugs other t an to a

patient or consumer.

' 2. n e PDM A requirtd that each person or entity who engaged in the w olesale

distribution of prescription drugs and who is not the manufacturer or an authorized distri utor of

such drugs, before each wholesale distribution of such drugs, must provide to tht purc aser of
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the drugs a statem ent that identifies each prior sale, purchmse, or trade of the drug, incl ding the

date of each transaction and the names and addresses of all parties to the transactio . This

statement is commonly referred to as a Sçpedigree.''

3. The PDMA was part of the Federal Food, Drug. and Cosmetic Act ($$ DCA''),

the law enacted by Conress to regulate the approval, manufacture, distribution, and afety of

prescription drugs in the United States.

4. The Food and Drug Administration (i$FDA9') was an agency of the Unit d States

Depm ment of Health and Human Services. The FDA was responsible for enforcing th FDCA

and PDM A.

Prezcriptioa Drui Divtrsion

5. Prescription drug ttdiversion'' refers to various ways in which prescripti n drugs

are removed from lawful distribution channels and then reintroduced into the holesale

marketplace for eventual resale to individual consumers, Common types of diversio include

theft and buying prescription drugs from patients who are willing to resell their medicati ns,

Corporation:

6. Ocean Pharmed LLC ('tOcean'') was incorporated in or around March, 2007. in

the State of South Carolina and had principal places of businesses in Irmo and Columb a, South

Carolina. Ocean wms licensed under South Carolina law as a wholesale distri utor of

prescription drugs.

7. Medpharma LLC ('sM edphsrma'') was incomorated in or around June, 2008, in

thc State of South Carolina and had a principal place of business in Columbia, South arolina. .

M edpharma was licensed under South Carolina law as a wholesale distributor of pr scription

drugs.
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The Defendant

8. The defendant, W ILLIAM  D. RODRIGUEZ, was a resident of M ia i-Dade

County, and controlled the opemtions of Ocean and Medphnnna.

COUNT 1
Conspiracy to Defraud the United State: and Com mit Federal Offen:e:

(18 U.S.C. j 371)

1 . Paragraphs 1 through 8 of the General Allegations Section of this Infonn tion are

realleged and incorporated by reference as though fully set forth herein.

2. From in or around M arch 2007, and continuing through in or around July 009, in

Minmi-Dade County, in the Southem District of Floridw and elsewhere, the defendant,

W ILLIAM  D. RODRIGUEZ

did willfully, that is, with the intent to further the objects of the conspiracy, and kn wingly

combine, conspire, confederate, and agree with others known and unknown to the Unite States

Attomey to defraud the United States by impairing, obstructing, and defeating, and atte pting to

impair, obstruct and defeat, the lawful functions of the Food and Drug Administra ion, an

agency of the United States Depm ment of Health and Human Services, and to commi certain

offenses against the United States, that is:

a. to knowingly engage in the wholesale distribution in interstate com erce of

prescription drugs subject to Title 2 1 , United States Code, Section 353(b), in the State of Florida,

without being licensed by the State of Florida, in violation of Title 2 1 , United Stat s Code,

Sections 331(t), 333(b)(1)(D), and 353(e)(2)(A);

b. to knowingly engage in the wholesale distribution of a prescription drug s bject to

Title 21 , United States Code, Section 353(b), with intent to defraud and mislead, an , before

each such distribution, to fail to provide to the person who receives the drug a state ent that
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identifies each prior sale, purchase, and trade of such drug, in violation of Title 2 1, Unite States

Code, Section 331(t), 333(a)(2), and 353(e)(1)(A);

c. to knowingly transporq transmit, and transfer in interstate commerce an goods,

wares, and merchandise, of the value of $5,000 and more, knowing the snme to have bee stolen,

converted. and lnken by fraud, in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 23 14; and

d. to knowingly receive, possess, conceal, store, barter, sell and dispose of any

goods, wares, and merchandise, of the value of $5,000 and more, which have crossed a State

boundary aher being stolen, unlawfully converted, and taken, knowing the same to ha e been

stolen, tmlawfully converted, and taken, in violation of Title 1 8, United States Code, Section

2315.

Purpose of the Conspiracv

3. It was the pumose of the conspiracy for the defendant and his co-conspi ators to

unlawfully enrich themselves by: (a) distributing prescription drugs wholesale where su h drugs

had been acquired from unlicensed distributors and othem ise diverted; (b) transfe ng and

reselling diverted prescription drugs; and (c) impeding the FDA in its oversight of w olesale

prescription drug distribution and in protecting consum ers from the dangers posed by iverted

prescription drugs,

M anner and M eans of the Conspiracv

The manner and means by which the defendant and his co-conspirators s ught to

accomplish the objects and purpose of the conspiracy included, nrnong others, the followi g:

4. W ILLIAM  D. RODRIGUEZ pm chased and caused to be purchased w olesale

quantities of prescription drugs in the State of Florida from individuals he knew ere not

properly licensed to engage in the wholesale distribution of prescription drugs and ho had
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diverted the drugs from lawful chnnnels of wholesale distribution, including drugs that ad been

stolen f'rom interstate cargo shipments or purchased in street-levtl transactions from in ividuals

who were willing to sell their own prescription drugs.

5. W ILLIAM D. RODRIGUEZ caused diverted prescription drugs to be sent by

private and commercial interstate carriers from the Southern District of Florida to O ean and

M edphsrma in South Carolina.

6. W ILLIAM  D. RODRIGUEZ caused diverted prescription dnzgs to be elivered

to Ocean and M edpharma by trucks that travvled in interstate com merce.

7. W ILLIAM  D. RODRIGUEZ negotiated the sale of diverted prescripti n drugs

from Ocean and Medpharma to a South Cmmlina-based company that was owned and c ntrolled

by another member of the conspiracy. RODRIGUEZ sold the diverted prescription d gs at a

price well below their typical wholesale acquisition cost.

8. The South Carolina-based company resold the diverted drugs wholesale, causing

them to be distributed into interstate commerce, whert they eventually were acquired y retail

pharmacies, which tilled prescriptions for unsuspecting consumers.

9. To avoid detection of the scheme, W ILLIAM D. RODRIGUEZ an his co-

conspirators created and used false and fraudulent records, including false pedig ees and

invoices, in order to create the fktion that the prescription drugs had been acqu red and

distributed lawfully.

10. To facilitate the scheme, W ILLIAM D. RODRIGUEZ and his co-con pirators

used interstate wire comm unications, including facsim ile transmissions, emails, d wire

transfers.
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Overt Acts

In furtherance of the conspiracy, and to accomplish its objects and pumose, at least one

of conspirators committed and caused to be committed, in the Southem Dislrict of Flo ida, and

elsewhere, at least one of the following overt acts, nmong others:

1. On or about M arch 1 8, 2008, W ILLIAM  D. RODRIGUEZ sent an e ail from

M ismi-Dade County to a co-conspirator in South Carolina, attaching a document entitled SsAcct #

2,9' a list of unlicensed prescription drug wholesale distributors from whom RODRIG EZ was

purchasing prescription drugs and reselling them to the company of the co-conspirator n South

Carolina.

2. On or about M arch 19, 2009, W ILLIAM  D. RODRIGUEZ sent a facsi i1e from

M inmi-Dade County consisting of a fraudulent drug pedigree statement that falsely ide tified a

nationally known authorized distributor of prescription drugs as the source of prescripti n drugs

that were being sold by M edpharma to a co-conspirator in South Carolina.

Al1 violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 371 .

COUNT 2
Conspiracy to Comm it M oney Laundering

(18 U.S.C. j 1956(h))

From in or around M arch 2007, and continuing through in or arotmd July 009, in

M inmi-Dade County, in the Southern District of Florida, and elsewhere, the defendant,

W ILLIAM  D. RODRIGUEZ,

did willfully, that is, with the intent to further tht object of the conspiracy, and kn wingly

combine, conspire, confederate, and ap ee with persons known and unknown to the Unit d States

Attomey to commit violations of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1957, that is: to e gage in
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monetary transactions by, through, and to a financial instimtion, affecting interstate and foreign

commerce, such transactions involving criminally derived property of a value grea er than

$10.000 and such property having been derived from specified unlawful activity, in viol tion of

Title 18, United States Code, Scction 1957.

It is further alleged that the speciûed unlawful activity was knowingly rece ving in

interstatc commerce unlawfully converted merchandise of the value of $5,000 or ore, in

violation of Title l 8, United States Code, Section 2315.

All in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1956(h).

FORFEITURE

(18 U.S.C. jj 981 and 982)

1 . The allegations of Counts 1 and 2 of this Information are realle ed and

incomorated by reference as though fully set forth hertin for the purpose of alleging forf iture to

the United States of America of certain property in which the defendant, W ILLI M D.

RODm GUEZ may have an interest.

2. Upon a conviction of a conspiracy to violate Title 18, United States Code, Section

2315. pursuant to Title 18, United States Code, Section 371, as alleged in Count 1 of this

Information, defendant, W ILLIAM  D. RODRIGUEZ, shall forfeit to the Unite States,

pursuant to Title 18, United States Code, Section 98 1(a)(1)(C), as incomorated by itle 28,

United States Code, Section 2461(c), any property, real or personal, which constitut s, or is

derived from, proceeds traceable to such violation.

3. Upon a conviction of a violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 956(h),

as alleged in Count 2 of this lnformation, the defendant, W ILLIAM  D. RODRIGU Z, shall

forfeit to the United States any property, real or personal, involved in such violation or any

property traceable to such property, pursuant to Title 18, United States Code, Section 98 (a)(1).
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4. Theproperty which is subject to forfeiture includes,but is not to,the

following: the sum of $55,000,000 which sum represcnts the grossproceeds obtained.

or indirectly, by the defendant as a result of the commission of the violations alleged in 1

and 2.

Al1 pursuant to Title l 8, United States Codes Sections 981 and 982, Title United

States Code, Section 2461, and the procedures outlined in Title 21, United States

853, as made applicable by Title 18, United States Code, Section 982(b)(1 ).

t <
WI D0 A. FERRER
UNITED STATES ATTORNEY

JON . JUE GER
ASS TANT UNITED STATES ATTORNEY

:

DA D A. K
T L A ORNEY
U.S. DEPARM ENT OF JUSTICE
CONSUM ER PROTECTION BRANCH
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA CASE NO.

V%. CERTIFICATE OF TRIAL ATTORNEY*

WILLIAM D. RODRIGUFT,

Defendant.
-  I Supeoeding Cale lnformatlon:

Coud Dlvislon: (select one) New Defendantls..l Yes No
Number of New Defendants

X Miami Ke West Total number of counts)s FTpFTL w
l do hereby certify that: '

1. 1 have carefully considered the allegations pf the indictm#n ,t the number 9f defendant ! the number of
robable witnesses and the Iegal complexlties of the lndlctmenvlnformatlon attached hereto.P

2. I am pware that the information supplied Qn thiq ltatement will be relied upon by th Judges pf this
Cpud In setti .gn theirçalendars and schedullng crlmlnal trlals underthe mandate of the peedyTrlalAct,
Tltle 28 U.S.C-. Sectlon 3161.

3. lqterpreter: (Yes Qr No) V'om
LIst Ianguage and/or dlalect '

4. This case will take n days for the padies te try,

5. Rease check appropriate category and type of offense listed below:

tcherA Qnly on*) (C%> only on@)

1 0 to 5 days X P#tty
11 6 to IQ days Mlnor
lI# 1 1 to 20 days Mlsdem.
N 21 to 60 days Feleny X
V 61 days and over

6. Has this case been previously filed in this District Court? (Yes or No) Nn
If yes:
Judge: - - Case No.
(Attach copy gf dispositive Mrdeç)
Has a complalnt been filed In thls matter? (Yes or No) Nn
If yeq:
Maglstrate Case No.
Related Miscqllaneous numbers:
Defendantls) ln federal custedy as of
Defendanqs) In state custody as of
Rule 20 from the District of

Is this a potential death penalty case? (Yes or No) Nn

7. Does this case or gi inate from a matter pending in the Northern Region of the U.S. Attor ey's Office prior
G03? Yes X Noto October 14, 2

8. Does this case originate from a maqer pending in the Centrag Region of the U.S. Attor ey's Office prior
to September 1, 29077 Yes X No

JON . JUEN R
ASSIS ANT ITED STATES ATTORNE
Florida Bar No.r oud No. 56108

*penalty Sheeqs) attached REv4/&c8
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA

PENALTY SHEET

Dkfendant's Name: W ILLIAM  D. RODRIGUEZ

Case No:

Count #: l

Cons irac to Defraud the United St tes and Comm it Federal Off nses

Title 18 United States Code ection 371

# M ax. Penal : Five 5 ears' im risonment

Count #: 2

Cons irac to Commit M one Launderin

Title 18 United States Code Section 1956 h .

*M ax. Penal : Ten 10 ears' im risonment

*Refers only to possible term af incaretration, does not inelude possible nnes, restit tion,

special assessments, parole terms, or forfeitures that may be applicable.
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